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3SSR. I'. FENWICK TUCKER

The evidence tendered at t,he trial ill proof that the vegetable matter found in
the appellant's possession contaillf'd gnnjn came from 1\ duly appointed analyst,
Dr. Ellington, who said thnt hi~ examination of th.t.t matter involved the search
for and analysis of that part of the fruiting top of the plant cannahis sativa

E where the diRtribution of the rC'sill-producing- c"lIs is highest and concentration
of resin if! consequently greatpst. He f'fticl thnt the prCf'C'llce of the fruiting
top, and t,hc finding of the drug tdrn-hytlro-el1lJlJflhillo! ,dlich is the active
principal of the cannahiR sativa plant, shows that the wgdllhlc matter he
examined contained part of the pistillate plant ca'~lIah;.q 8(1t;1'(/ f .."m which the
resin had not been extracted, as the fact that the resin \ms isolated from the

F fruit and in high concentration indicated that it WfiS the pistillate or female
}Jlant he was deflling with, as distinct from t,he mille, which does not produce
fruit. He agreed that before the flmvl:'ring stnge of the plo.nt cannabis sativa
if'. rCllched, when the female plant bears pistils Hnd the male stlll11ells, it is not
possible to identify the plant by referC'nce tn it" sex, Rnd he also agrcpd thnt
there was another plant cannallil! .~ativa to he found in ,Tamnie'l1, which he

G called an anomaly, and which fit the flowering stage has nIl the characteristics
of both the pistillate llnd staminate plants. The anomaly, hr said, is 0. female
with its own pollinating Jdt nnd at th(' flowering f'.toge cnn br distinguished as
fin anomaly; hd at the fruit,ing "toge it is not possible to tell whether the
plant at the flowering stnge shr,wer! the chAracteristics of t.hf'. anom!fly or
exclusively of the pi~til1ate, using- the definition Itt the pi!.;tillnte. stltge. In

H conclusion, he Mid that "the anomAly also has fruit, it is pistillate by defini.
tion", that at the fruiting st.agc it is impossible to teU the anomaly from the
pistillate becausc the anomaly is the pistillate Rnd thnt the fruit is part of
the plant a.nd indicates the sex of the plant.

For the defence a bob1l1ist, Dr. Cokf', testifying as nn f'xpcrt, said that
propf'J'ly the plnnt i:; dioccious, meaTling that there is a stnminntf' alld a pistil-

I ll\te plant, but that at the flowering stage there if! a monoecious plant, meaning
that the same plant bears separflte male Rnd female flowers. He alSo said that
after the flowering stnge both thp. pistillate Bnd the monoecious plants may hear
fruit, but he would not say that the monoecious plant has become a pistillate
plant at the time of fruit-bearing, Ill'; once a plant is monoceio\1s it remail"s so
-it has both sexes, hut is not bisexual. He further Rllid that he could not
disagree with Dr. Ellington's conchlsions as to the vf'gctable matter examined,
not having examined that TIlnttf'l' himself.

A (Il) a Ringl" nct or series of nets is Ilf ~lIch II nature tilat, it is douhtful which
of H('\ ('fnl OffC'IH~PS the fl\(·1 s ",.h ieh el\n be proved will cOIlf'.titutl', and n
person is chllrged with each or an~' of st~ch offences,

fHlCll chnrgcs moy he tried nt the some time lllllC'>;s the court it4 of the opinion
that stich person is lil{ely to be prejudiced or embarrassed in his defence by

B reason of such joinder."

Held: (i) the case did not fall within the provisions of s. 22 (2) (b) of the
Criminal Justice (Administration) Law, Cap. 83 [J.], which contemplates
several different or Sepo.rRte offences arising from a single act or series of acts,
as here there wos a single act of possession which had been made the subject
of two charges for one and the same offence;

C (ii) there was no statutory authority for the joint trial; but
(iii) the trinl of the appellant on two informations which charged the same

offence was noL in breRch of allY statute or allY other known rulc of law nor
was it contrary to authority; and

(iv) as it WIIS not, and could not be contendEd in the circumstnnces, that the
appellant was, or was likely to hp, prejudicpd by the joint trial, there wus,

n therefore, no legal ohjection to the joint trinl of the infmmi\tiolH.
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[COURT OF ApPEAL (Luckhoo, Smith and Hercules, JJ.A.), February 1, 2, 3, 4, 5,
March 12, J97]] n

Criminal Law-['roccdul'c-'1'rial of appellant; at same lime on two informa­
tions charging same ()fjcncr.-One information charging appellant alone with
po.~8cssion of ganja---.1nflllwr information charging appellant and another accu8ed
jointly with 1IOslleM,io/t of fJrrnjet--No prejudice occasioned appellant by trial of
Ilotlt information.~ al {he same time-No legal objection to both informations
being tried together. E

Criminal Law-Dangcl'rHul J)rurJ'~ LaW-P08M;i!.~ion of ganja-Naturc of proof
ncce8.~ary to show that .Q1L!J.qlancc found in pORscRsion of accused i.~ ganja within
the contempla.tion of the Dangrroll,q Drug8 Law, Cap. 90 [.T.].

The appellant, a citi7.E'O of the U.S.A., was charged and tried on two informa·
tions, the first of which charged him jointly with D.M., also Q citizen of the
U.S.A., with the offence of having ganja in his possession on February 2,1970, [i'
and the fiecond of which e1wrW'd him alone with a similar offence allegedly
committed on the Sf\mc date. Both informntions were in respect of the same
act of posf;('ssiol1. 'J'hpre WI\S n joillt trial of these two informations with four
other informntiom.;, one of which charged D.M. jointly with seven Jamaican
citizens with hllving ganja in their pORsession on February 2, 1970, while the
remaining thre~ informations charged D.M. and two of the Jamaican citizens G
separately with using a motor-car to trnnsport ganja on thc same date. The
appellant was convicted on the information on which he was charged alone.
D.M. and each of his co-accllsed wNe convicted on the information on which
they were jointly charged. No verdict was recorded on the information which
charged the appellant jointly with D.l\L Of the other persons convicted, only
D.M. gave notic,~ of appeal, hut he did not pursue it. H

At the start of the trial before a resident magistrate, objection was made to
the joint trial of b'lth informations charging the appellant when this was re,quested
hy coullsel for the prosecution. It wos submitted on behalf of the appellant that
there was no statutory Ruthority for such a course being token, and further
thnt at common Jaw, two informntions chnrging one or more persons could not
he tried together even with the C011Rent of the parties. The learned resident I
magistrate overruled the ohjection. A submission to similar effect was relied on
by the appellant on appeol flgainst his conviction. For the Crown it was
contended that the joint trial of the two informations against the appellant was
Authorised by s. 22 (2) (b) of the Criminal Justice (Adminif!tration) Law, Cap. A3
[.1.J, which provides as follows:

"'Where, in relation to offences triable fmmmarily ...

I
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It \\"88 Bubmitted for the appellant that in the state of the expert evidence A
there "'88 no clear or convincing evidence that the vegetable matter Dr. Elling-
ton examined contllined part cf the pistillate plant and so contained ganja
within the definition of gnnjn in the Dangerous Drugs Lnw, Cnp. 90.

Held: the finding thot what Dr. IWinr::ton examiued eontnined gnnjll is n

ftndin~ thnt could properly have been made on Dr. Ellington's evidence, and
there was nothing in Dr. Coke's evidence which contrndicted Dr. Ellington's B
~vidence that at the fruiting stage the monoecious plant is pistillate by defini.
tion, the totality of the expert evidence bEing that at the fruiting stage the
mnnoeciolls plant has pistillate characterishcs only. Dicf1l111 of SHELLY"', J ..'\.,
in n. v. Pansford lVilson (12) npplied.

Appeal dismissed.

Cnses referred to :
(1) n. v. }'ce Lo!] (1941),4 J.L.R. 53.
(2) Edwards v . •!one8, [H)47] 1 All E..R. 830; [1'J47] K.B. 65\lj 111 J.P.

324; 45 L.G.R. 324, D.C.
(3) R. v. Campbell, [1956J 2 All E.R. 272; [1956] 3 W.L.R. 219; [1956]

2 Q.B 432; 120 .J.P. 31>U; 100 Sol. .To. 454; 40 Cr. App. Rep. \ll>, C.C.A. D
(4) Brangwynne v. J';V(z.n,~, [Hl62] 1 All E.R. 44H; [HW2] 1 W.L.R. 267;

126 J.P. 173; 106 Sol. Jo. 197, D.C.
(Ii) U. v. Motta, [1920] Clark's Rerts. 69 [.T.].
(f,) If. v. AshllOllTnC .u., E.r parte Nadcn (1950), \)4 Sol. .To. 148; 48 hG.R.

268, D.C.
(7) JJowrencc v. SfltllC, (1968] 1 All g.R.1lU1; [19G8] 2 W.L.R. 1002; [19(8) E

2 Q.B. 93, D.C.
(8) Il. v. Salomons (1786),1 Term Rf'p. 249; 99 KR. 1077.
(9) R. v. Chandler (1811), 14 East, 267; 104 E.R. 603.

(10) R. v. Dunmow .JJ., Ex parte Anderson, [1904] 2 All E.R. 943; [1964)
1 W.L.R. 103U; 128 J.P. 468; 108 Sol. Jo. 179, D.C.

(11) R. v. George (;rcen (HHi9), 14 W.I.R. 204. F
(12) R. v. Pa"A~ford W;l,~on (1970), p. I, ante.
(13) R. v. Armstrong and Smith (1!l70), p. 302, ante.

Appeal from conviction by n ref;ident magistrate on information for possession
of ganjn.

F. M. Phipps, Q.C., alld Misil n. Walfers for the appellant.
J. S. Kerr, Q.C., D.P.!'., alld P. Robinson for tbe Crown.

SMITH, J.A., ddiv('red the judgmPllt of the court: The npp(·J1nnt Wllf; COlI­

vieted on .June 4, uno, ill tlw rCRident magistmte's court for the pnrish of
Clnrendon, on an information which charged him with having ganja in his H
pos~es~i0n on February 2, Hl70, contrary to s. 7 (c) of the Dangerous Drugs
LIlW, CIl». uo [J.]. He was sentenced to imprisonment with hard labour for
three yean,. He has appealed against his conviction and sentence.

Thr appellant, who if; !\ citizen of the United Statef; of America, was charged
And tried on two informations. On the first he waS jointly charged with Dave
Martin, alf;o a citizen of the United States of America, witb the offence of I
having ganjfl in his possession on February 2, 1970. On the second he was
cbarged nlonp with a similar offence nllegedly committed on the same date.
There wn" a joint trial of these two informations with four others. One of
thef'.e othen; charged Dave Martin jointly with seven .Tamnican citi?ens wit.h
having gnnjn. in their posf;cf;sion on February 2, 1970. The remaining three
chnrgl'c1 Martin and two of the Jamaican citiz.ens separately with using a
lI",tor-car to trnnsport ganja on the same date. The appellant was convietf'rl

A on the information on which he was charged alone. Martin and his co·defen·
dnlltR were each cOllvicted on tbe information on which they were jointly
charged. No verdict was recorded on the information whicb charged the
nppellllllt jointly with Martin. Of the other persons convict.ed, only Martin
gl\ve notice of appeal, but he has not pursued it.

On the night of Febrtlary L 1970, a party of policemen led by Det. Super-
B intendent Jez Marsum, acting on information, went to Vcrnam Field in Claren.

don and lay in nmbuRh around a disuRed nirfield there. At about 4.30 a.m.
on February 2, a motocnde of four motor cars arrived at the airfield. Ten men
came from the motor cars, ulllolldrd t.en crocuf;.bul{s from the boots of the four
motor cars, and placed them under a tre(' nrnrby. '1'he ten men included Martin
and the seven .Tamaico.nR charged with him. At About 6.15 H.m. a small aero·

e plane landed. Martin went on to the runway and signalled witb bis arms.
The aeroplane stopped beside him Rnd near to the place where tbe crocus.bags
were put. Tbe appellant alighted from the aeroplane. The prosecution'8 case
Wfl.S that the appellant and Martin spoke together after the appellant slighted.
Martin then "rusbed" to the spot wbere the bags were. He took up two of tbe
crocus bags and "rushed" bnck with them to the appellant, who took them and

D threw them into the aer(lplflrJf~. Martill "rushed" back for two more bags
and took them to the appellant, wbo recf'ived them and put them also into the
aeroplane. Martin went back for another bag. He !Ind others were taking
the remaining six bags towards the aeroplane when the police came out (If
Ilmhush Ilnd rushed towards them. The Ilppellant and the other defendantf!
wrm }I('ld find suuse(j\llmtly elmrgpd IlS indiel1ted above.

:E The four crocus·bags which it was alleged were put into the aeroplane by the
nppellant, were removed from it by the police. These and the other six bags
were opened in the presence of the appellant and the other defendants. Each
bag was found to contain a number of packages. Two of the four bags removed
from the aeroplane were returned to it. The other eight bags and their can·
tents were subsequently taken to the Government chemist, D~. Alton Ellington

.F for examination and analysis. Dr. Ellington found that each of seven hags had
four brown paper parcels nnd the eighth had three such parcelR. Each parcel
contained vegetable matter. The vegetable matter in each varied in weight
from lOt lb. to 9t lb. He took a f;8mple from eacb parcel, and after examination
and analysis, he was of the opinion that the vegetable matter he examined was
ganja.

G The appellant's first ground of nppral is as follows:

"The learned resident magistrate erred in law in ruling that informations
Nos. 630/70 and 1264/70 should be tried together. It is submitted that the
u.I1egatioIlR of fllct rclateo.d to one net of pOHscElHion aud then~ ougbt not in the
circumstances to be two illforml\tioJlH for the same offence. It is further
submitted that at common law, two informations, whether or not for the same
offence, cannot be tried together, and the provisions of s. 22 (2) of the
Criminal J uF:tice (Administration) Law, Cap. 83, could not apply to this
case as the defendant/appellant was not charged with two or more onences
as provided for in the section."

Information No. 630/70 charged the appellant jointly with Martin and on No.
I 1264/70 he waf; cbarged alone.

It is admitted by the Crown that both informations were in respect of the
same act of possession. In other words the appellant was charged twice with
the same offence. Objection to this was taken at the start of t.he trial by
counsel for the appellant after counsel for the prosecution had opened the case
and ssked for joint trial of all the cbarges. The reason for the duplication of
the charge was given by counsel for tbe prosecution at t.he end of the prosecu­
tion's Case when counsel for tbe appellant 8Bked that the prosecution be made
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to elect on which of the informations they were asking for a verdict. Counsel A
for tbe prosecution, as appears on the record, SQid that the prosecution's case
was that the appellant and Martin were in joint possession of the four bags
Ja.ded on to the aeroplane; that Martin had also been charged with the others
apart from the appellant, with posssesion of eight bags; Ilnd that the indepen­
dent charge against the appellant was laid becuuse there was some doubt "as
to whether the prosecution could properly ask for 'no verdict' to be entered B
against Martin on the joint charge." Later counsel l'aid that the charges were
preferred against Martin and the appellant in the alternative.

Before us, learned counsel for the appellant repeated the submissions made
in the first ground of appeal and expanded on them. He submitted that at
common law, two informations charging one or more individuals cannot be
tried together even with the consent of the parties. Reference was made to C
R. v. Yee Loy (1); Edwards v. Jone8 (2); R. v. Campbell (3); and Brangwynne
v. Evans (4). It was submitted that s. 22 of the Criminal Justice (Administra­
tion) Law, Cap. 83 [J.J, creates an exception to the common law rule, but that
the exception does not cover the present situation in that the charges against
the appellant are not for different offences. It was said that the situation can
be rescued only if the case can be brought within g. 22 and since it cannot, D
the conviction must be quashed.

On behalf of the Crown, it Was contended that the joint trial of the two
informations against the appellant was authorised by s. 22 (2) (b) of the Criminal
•Justice (Administration) Law. Subsection (2) of s. 22 of that Law is in the
following terms:

(2) Where, in relation to offences triable summarily-

(a) a person is charged with two or more offences arising out of acts so
connected as to form the same transaction; or

(b) a single act or series of acts is of such a nature that it is doubtful
which of several offences the facts which can be proved will constitute,
and a person is charged with each or any of such offences,

such charges may be tried at the same time unless the court is of the
opinion that such person is likely to be prejudiced or embarrassed in his
defence by reason of such joinder.

In our view, the case under consideration does not fall within the prOVISIOns
of para. (b) of sub-so (2). We think that para. (b) contemplates several G
different or separate offences arising from a single act or series of acts. We
are concerned here with a single act of poosession which has been made the
subject of two charges for one and the same offence. The fact that the appellant
was charged jointly with Martin for possession of ganja does not make this
offence different from that with which he was charged singly. Where a person
commits an offence jointly with another, he may be charged either singly or jointly H
with that other, but the offence remains the same however he is charged. On the
CAse presented by the prosecution, there was no necessity to charge the appellant
8ingly. If the evidence supported a joint possession with Martin of the bags the
appellant put into the aeroplane, then both could have been convicted on the infor­
mation charging them jointly. If it was found that Martin's possession ceased
when the bags were handed to the appellant, Martin would have had t{) be acquitted I
on that charge, while the appellant would remain liable to conviction. Whereas
in Martin's case it can be said that there may have been successive separate
acts of possession and that the eharges Against him based on each act of posses­
sion were different, the Sllme cannot be said of the appellant where, o.s has
been stated, there was one act of p08sesr,ion.

It was not contended that the joint trial of the charges against the appellant
W8~ authorised by para. (a) of sub-so (2) of s. 22. There was, therefore, no

A statutory authority for the joint trial. The question now is whether this must
result in the quashing of the conviction, as was submitted. This calls for an
examination of the submission, and the cases referred to in support, that there
is a common law rule which was broken.

In ll. v. Yce Loy (1), the appellant and another defendant were tried by consent
on separate informations. It was held that a resident magistrate has no juris-

B diction to try two :,wparl1te informations agaim;t two defendants at one and the
~I\me time, even by c()n~ent. '1'hi~ dpcision may have led to the enactment in
1942 of the provisions contained in s. 22 of the Criminal Justice (Administration)
Law. In Yee Loy's case (1), reference WllS made to R. v. Motta (5), in which
the Full Court of the Supreme Court held that it was not permissible to try
together two informations charging the same person with separate offences, one

C af which is triable by a resident magistrate summarily in his court and the
other in petty sessions.

In Edwards v. Joncs (2) the offences of do.ngerou8 driving and careless driving
wen~ charged in the same information. 'l.'his was held wrong, being contrary
to provisions in s. 10 of the [:)ummary Jurii-ldiction Act 1848 [U.K.J, that every
information shall be for one offence only. There is a similar provision in s. 9

D of the Justices of the Peace Jurisdiction Lo.w, Cap. 188 [.J.].
Brangwynne v. Evans (4) was a case in which t.he appellant was tried at the

same time on three informatioTls, each of which charged him with stealing
articles from one of three different shops in the same town on the same day.
He did not consent to the joint trial of the informations. He was convicted
on ench charge. It was held that thl: procedure which the justice adopted

E (in trying the informations tugether without consent) was contrary to law and
the convictions were consequently quashed. It is 011 this ca:-e that the greatest
reliance was placed in support of the appellant's contentioll. R. v. Campbcll
(3) does not take the matter any further.

In none of the cases cited was express reference made to any rule at common
law that two informations cannot be tried together. Edwards v. Jones (2) was

F not concerned with the joint trial of two informations, but reliance was placed
on statements made by LORD GonDARD, C.•L, in that case, which are clearly
obiter. LORD GODDARD said ([1947J 1 All E.R. at p. 832) :

"There is no ground for saying that, if an information discloses two
offences, the justices can hear the two offences together and then say: "Ve
will convict on one.' That would be giving the go-by to the prvvisions of

G R. 10 of thc Summary Jurisdiction Act 1848, which makes it perfectly clear
that in a justices' court a defendant can only be called on to answer one
charge at a time. If th",re are two informations against a defendant, on which
the facts are very much the same, it is, of course, open to the defendant to
agree to the two summonses being heard at once. That is constantly done."

H He referred to the provisions of s. 35 of the Road Traffic Act 1934 [D.K.] ,
which permits a charge of can·less driving to be preferred during the hearing
of a charge of reckless or dangerous driving, and continued:

"Observe the careful provision which is made in that section to prevent the
two charger. being heard together ... That emphasises the point which I have
been making that the defendant is never to be called on tr, answer two

1 charges at the same time unless there are two separate informations and he
consents to their being heard together."

It is to be observed that LORD GODDARD do(Os not attribute his statement that
"a defendant iR nev",r to be called on to answer two charges at the same time
unless there are two separate informations Ilnd he consents to their being
heard together" to any common law rule. It is clear from the early part of the
first passage quoted that the principle which he enunciates was extracted by
him from the provisions of s. 10 of the Act of 1848.
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IJORD PARKF.R, D.,r., in the BTangwynne CIlRe (4) puts the mntter much highor A
Ulan LORD GODDARD did. He said «4), [1962] 1 Alll~.R. at p. 446) :

"I aID quite satisfied ... that it has always been a principle of our law
that 8 defendant can only be called on to answer aIle charge at a time in a
magistrate's court."

He cites the provisions of s. 10 of the Act of 1848 as an illustration and continues B
(ibid., at p. 447) :

"That is a good illustration of the principle to which I have referred, and
although there is no statutory provision on the point, it would seem to follow
that if that principle is to be adhered to, two informations, albeit each con·
tRining one charge, ought not to be tried at the same time, unless, of course, C
the defendant consents."

The only authorities cited by LORD PARKER for what he said "has alwoys been
a principle of our law" where the passages in Edwards v. •Jones (2) already
quoted and H. v. Ashbourne JJ., FJ.r parte Nadcn, (6). LORD PARKER said
«4), [1962] 1 All B.R. at p. 447) that the whole basis of the decision in the
latter case "is that unless the defendant consents either expressly or impliedly, D
it is wrong for two informations to be heard at the same time." Any doubt
about the origin of the principle stated by LORD PARKER is removed by ll. state­
ment mnde by him in Lawrence v. Same (7). In that case, the learned Lord
Chief .Tustice said ([1968] 2 W.L.R. at p. 1064) :

"It hm~ always, or at any rate since 8.10 of the Summary .Juri.~dictionAct 1848, E
It'a~ lUll/lied, bcen impossible for magistrates to try more than one information
alleging oue offence at the same time; that of course is apart from the
defendant conilenting to the trial of more than one offence. That is now
to be found in r. 14 of the Magistrates' Courts Hllies 1\)52, nnd is supported

. by abundant lluthority, of which a recent one is Hrangwynne v. Evans (4)."

If there is a common law rule, it is strange that no reference is made to it F
in Imy of the caseH. 1f there is such II rule it is not clear what precisely are
its terms. Learned cOllIlsel for the appellant WIlS unable to point to a statement
of the rule anywhere. If the rule exists it certainly is not as wide as stated
by counsel. It is quite clear from the passllges in the judgments of LORD

GODDARD and LORD PAllKER quoted above, that there is no legal objection to a
joint trial with the con~ent of the d('fendant. The indications arc against the G
existence of any such rule at common law. No English caRe prior to Edward.q
v. .Jones (2) in 1947 was cited, aud we have bren unable to find any in which
the joint trial of two separate informations against the snme defendant was held
to be wrong. Certainly in Jamaica in 1920 such a trial may have been per­
mil'lsible. In R. v. Motta (5) decided in that year, the Full Dourt said ([1920]
Clark's Rept~. at p. 71): "This was not 11 case of two offences cognizable by H
the SRme tribunal, in which case different cun"idcrations might apply."

The problem that ari~es in this case, namely, the propriety of t,he joint
summAry trial of the same offence charged twice, docs not appear to have ever
h('forP. nriRC'n for deciRioll. This iH not surprisillg. The procedure is an \In\JslIfd
olle. NOlle of the authorities cited is directly in point. We have, therefore, to
decide the question on basic principles. Before 1848 in England, it 'was not I
unknown for two or more offences to be charged in thf' same information and
tried together. Such was the cal'>e in H. v. Salomons (8). The conviction was
held bad in that case as it was It conviction for "the said offence", hence it did
not appear of what offence the defendant was convicted. But there was no
suggestion that the information was bad or that the offences could not be tried
together (see alRo R. v. Chandlcr (9)). One of the reasons for the provisions
in s. 10 of the Act of 1848 may have been to avoid uncertainty and confusion

A ill the record illl-: of cOllvictiollH, aR ill the 8alo1nOIlIl elIse (H), hut there can be
no doubt, in our view, that the main reason for the prryvision and for the
principle extracted form it by LORn GODDARD and LORD PARKER in the cases
cited nbove is to enwre that a defendant is not prejudiced or embarrassed in
his defence by being compelled to answer two or more charges at the same
time. That the foundation of the principle iR prejudice or embarrassment is

B shown by the fact that there may be 1\ joint trial with the consent of the
defendant where he iR chllr~~~d in sepnrate information,;. N() question of preju­
dice can arise if he consents. Even implied consent is sufl1cient (see R. v.
A8hbourne, ./.T., Ex parte Naden (6) and n. v. DunmoUJ, .J.J., Ex paTte Ander.
son (10)). He cannot, of course, com;ent to a joint trial of offences charged
in the same information as to so charge him is prohibited by statute.

C The trial of the appellant on two informations which charged the Same offence
in each was not in breach of any statute or of any known rule of law, nor was
it contrary to authority. It was not, and could not be in the circumstances,
contended before us that the appellant was, or was likely to be, prejudiced by
the joint trial. There was, therefore, no legal objection to the learned resident
magistrate ruling that the charges should be tried together. 'l'hough, 8S we

D have said, there wa,; no legal necesfiity to charge· the appellant alone on a
separate information, there is no ground on which we can hold that to charge
him twice in the circumstances was legally obj~ctionable. For these reasons
the first ground of appeal fails. I

In his second ground of appeal the appellant complained that the verdict on
which his conviction waR based was unreasonable and cannot be supported

E having regard to the evidence. The verdict was said to be unreasonable firstly,
because there was no or no sufficient evidence that the exhibits in the case
were ganja as defined hy R. 2 of f,he Dnng(~rous Drugs Law. Ganja is there
opHnpd as illclllfling "1\11 part.s of th(, pistillate plant Iwown as canna/IiI/ lIaliva
from which the resin has not b(,(,11 extracted ... " It was held by this court
in R. v. George Green (11) that this definition restricts ganja to the pistillate

F plant cannahis saliva and no part of the staminate plant is inclllded. In addi­
tion to the evidence of Dr. Ellington, expert evidence was given on behalf of
the appellant by Dr. Lloyd Coke, a lecturer in the department of botany at the
University of the West Indie,;.

Dr. Ellington said that hI' took thp fruiting tops from ench of the parcels in
tho eight bags Ilnd Imaly,;pd t,hPTn. Hr- snirl thnt hifi nxarninfltion involved the

G search for, and analysiR of, that plIrt of tho frlliting top of the plant cannabis
Mtiva where the distribution of rpsin producing cplls is higheRt and concentra­
tion of resin is consequf'ntly grcatest. He found that the vegetable matter
contained the drug tetrn..hydra.cannabinol, which is the active principle of the
cannabis Rativa plant. He said that the presence of the fruiting top and the
finding of the drug shows that the vegetable matter contained part of the

H pistillate plant cannabis :;raliva from which the resin has not been extracted;
that the fact that the resin WHS isolated from the fruit and in high concentra­
tion indicatcs that it is th(~ pistillatp or fNnale plant he was dealing with as
distinct from the male, which does not produce fruit. He formed the opinion
that the matter he examined and I\nolysed was ganjn. ]n cross.exllminntion,
Dr. Ellington said that the pistillate plont hears pistil!; at its f'tage of flowering

I while the Rtaminatp: at that Rtage bE'ars Rtamens; that. lH'fore the plant Fltarts
to flower, onn cannot identify it aR nude or female; that tlwre iR n third plant,
which he Clllls an anomaly; thnt this anomaly has bel'li found in Jamaica,
and at the flowering Rtage has all th" characteristics of both pistillate and
staminate; that the anomaly is a female with its own pollinating kit, and at the
flowering stage can be distinguifihed as an anomaly; that the pistillate part of
the flower will produce fruit; that at a stage when the cannabi8 8ativa plant
has fruit it i,; not poi'sible to tell whether the plant nt the flowering stage
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lIbowed the characteristics for the anomaly or exclusively the pistillate, using A
the definition at the flowering stage. In re-examination, Dr. Ellington said
that when he took the samples the plant was at the fruiting stage; that because
of the high concentration of resin he formed the opinion lihat he was dealing
with the pistillate plant. He said that at the fruiting stage the pistillate plant
produces fruit, the staminate produces nothing; that "the anomaly also has
fruit, it is a pistillate by definition." To further questions in cross-examination B
and re-examination, he said that at the fruiting stRge it is impossible to tell
the anomaly from the pistillate because the anomaly is the pistillate, and that
the fruit is part of the plant and indicates the sex of the plant.

Dr. Coke agreed that before the flowering stage, there is no means known to
science by which the sex of the cannabis sativa plant can be determined. He
said that, properly speaking, the plant is dioecious, meaning there is a stnmi. C
Dote and a pistillate plant. Ht: said that at the flowering stage there i8 a
monoecious plant, meaning that the same plant bears separate male and female
flowers; that at the flowering stage he would not call a monoecious plant a
staminate or 0. pistillate; that after the flowering stage both the pistillate and
the monoecious plants may bear fruit; that he would not say that the mono­
ecious plant has become 0. pistillate at the time of fruit bearing; that it is not D
because both plants bear fruit that they are pistillate; that once a plant is
monoecious it remains 0. monoecious plantr-it has both sexes. In cross-exami­
nation Dr. Coke said that he could not disagree with Dr. Ellington, not having
examined what he (Dr. Ellington) examined in this case. He said that pistil­
late means bearing a pistil and that the fruit is developed from the pistils j

that given fruiting tops alone one cannot say that a plant is a pistillate plant E
or is not a pistillate plant. To a question by the court he said that the
monoecious plant is not bisexual.

It was submitted that on the state of the expert evidence, there is no clear
and convincing evidence that the exhibits were pistillate or exclusively pistillate
as the Law requires and as was stated in the George Green Case (11). It was
Raid that it was not established to the degree of proof rt>quired in a criminal F
case that the exhibits were ganja.

In R. v. Panilford Wilson (12), a case in which the appellant was also charged
with having ganja in his possession, this court had before it expert evidence
from both Dr. Ellington and Dr. Coke. A similar submission to that made in
this case was made in that case on the effect of the expert evidence. Dr. Elling-
ton said in that case, that in the hybrid (or monoecious) plant "one finds fruit. G
ing top which is chamcteristic of female and if test is applied to fruiting top
I would get same reaction (as in the pistillate plant)." SHELLEY, J .A., quoted
this passage from Dr. Ellington's evidence in the judgment of the court nnd
said:

"In other words, a fruiting top which is characteristic of the female that H
came from a hybrid plant would be indistinguishable from that from a purely
pistillate plant. In short it is indistinguishable from the very thing which
the law seeks to prohibit."

It was held that it waS rightly held that the vegetable matter in that case was
gnnja.

Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that we should not follow the I
decision in R. v_ Pansford Wilson (12) as in that caRe it was never considered
whether or not, scientifically it would be accurate to say that the mono('cious
plant became pistillate and nothing else at the fruiting stage. This submission
is, of course, based on Dr. Coke's evidence that he would not say that the
monoecious plant becomes a pistillate plant at the time of fruit bearing. Dr.
Ellington's opinion was that nt the fruiting stage it is impossible to tell the
anomaly from the pist.illate beCllt18e the nnomaly is the pistillate--"it is pistil-

A late by definition". The leaTnf'd resident magistrate in the present CQse
accepted Dr. Ellington's evidence and found that the samples taken by him
from the contents of the bags and analysed were ganja 8S defined in the Danger­
ous Drugs Law. In his findings the learned resident magistrate said: "There
seems to be a monoecious plant but my finding in this case is that all accused
in possession of the pistillate plant known as cannabis sativa from which resin

B not extracted 'tl.,ithin meaning ·,f the Dangerous Drugs Law, Cap. 90." In our
view, the finding that 'vha t Dr. Ellington examined was ganja is 0. finding
which could properly be madE" on Dr. Ellington's e;vidence. Though Dr. Coke
said that "once a plant is monoecious it remains a"'monoecious plant-it has
both sexes", this seems, on his evidence, to he based of! D}E'.re theory. It seems
clear from his evidence that the monoecious plant can be identified only at the

C flowering stage. There is nothing that he said which contradicts Dr. Ellington's
evidence that at the fruiting stage the monoecious plant is pistillate by defini·
tion. He does not say, a .. one would have expected if it were the fact, that
at the fruiting stage the monoeciom; plant has any male chllraeteristic which is
identifiable. What the totality of the expert evidence amounts to is that at
the fruiting stage the monoecious plant has pistillate characteristics only. This

D falls squarely within the decision in H. v. Pansford lVilson (12) with which we
entirely agree.

It was contended that it was wrong in law for Dr. Ellington to say in his
evidence that he formed the opinion that the matter he examined was ganja
and that it was wrong for the resident magistrate to have accepted and acted
upon that "legal opinion". It was said that Dr. Ellington was a scientific aud

E not a legal expert and was, therefore, not qualified to express this opinion. In
our Vif~W this contention is without merit. Dr. Ellingtull said in croRs-exami­
nation: "I would have thought that sn.mples were sent to me to make scientific
investigation and to relate it to the law. I related it to the law in my under­
standing of the law_' • We can find nothing wrong with this approach. The
resident magistrate was in no way bound by this expression of opinion and

F there is nothing to "how, as is contended, that he blindly accepted and acted
upon the opinion without considering the evidence on which the opinion was
based. \Ve hold that there was ample evidence to support the finding that the
samples which Dr. Ellington examined were ganja within the meaning of the
Dangerous Drugs Law.

The second ground on which the verdict was said to he unreasonable was
G that the learned resident magistrate failed to assess the evidence in the case

and draw proper inferenceR therefrom. It was said that he gave no weight
to the cogent independent and unchallenged evidence for the defence.

The appellant gave evidence and called "eveml witnesRes. He said that he i8 a
professional sportR fisherman. He arrived in .Tamaica on .Tanuary 26, 1970, in
a private aeroplane, which was chartered and piloted by Douglas Rhodie. His

H purpose in coming here waR to go to the Playboy Club in order to "check out
surrounding waters to see if it ,vas feasihle to move my business of fishing and
wat,rr-sports" and also for Ow plHJlose of "doing some preliminary work for
Mr. (Mike) Silva for advertising purpoRe" in Playboy International magazine."
Mr. Silva is a vice-president of Playboy International and he had spoken to
Mr. Silva prior to his arrival in .lnmaica. He said that Rhodie called him on

I the telephone, told him that he heard that he WIlS going to .Ta.maica, and offered
him the usC' of his (Rhodie ',,) aeroplane. It was arranged that he would pay
Rhodic',; C'xpemws hut not for the hire,age of the aeroplane. He did not know
who paid tlw hireage and did not ask. Hhodic, gave him th(~ impression that he
was coming to .Tamaica to assist him (appellant) with the aircraft in his survey
work. He knew of no other purpose for Rh(ldic coming to .Tamaica and he did
11')t know him prior to the telephone conversation with him. He said that ou
his arrival in .T atnaica on .Tnnuary 2G, he and Hhodie rl'gistf'fl'd at the Playboy
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Club at Boscobel, Ocho Rios. His reservation wns for period Monday, .TallH, A
ary 2G. to Wcdnesday, .January 28. On January 27, he started the ai rCTIl ft·
surv('y work with Rhodie piloting the aircraft. and ',VM engaged on this from
9 3.m. to fi p.m., when they returned to the club. Th.~y used the Boscobel
airstrip. On January 28, he and Rhodie flew to the PalisadoeR airport, leaving
Boscobel at about 7.30 a.m. and returning there at about 6 p.m. He was
engaged in Kingston all day on business con~ectcd with his miRHion to Jamaica. B
On the same day he extended hi;; ff~:;ervation Ilt the Playboy Club for two days
as he renli8cd "the job I had to do WaS much 111nger than I expected". He
said that he completed his business on Friday, .Jnnllary 30, and lcft B08cobel
in the aeroplane piloted by Rhodie. They flew to the P"lisadoes airport. He
expected to leave .Tamaicn on the Saturdl1Y morning, .Tanuary 31. The bill~

incurred at the Playboy Club for Rhodic and hims(,1f wNO paid by Mr. Silva, C
,,·ho telephoned from Chicago and made arrangement~ with Playboy about the
bills. When he arrived at the airport on Daturday morning with Rhodic, the
latter tried to get someone to repair II. mechanical defect in the aeroplane which
Rhodie said had developed the previou8 day. The defect was not fixed until
late in the afternoon of .T anuary 31, so it was deci<led that they wuuld leave
Jamaica on the following morning, February 1. On the fol:owing morning D
Rhodie said he could not fly the aeroplane then I)f'cau"e of adverse weather
condition,;. 011 the IW1rning of February 2, Rhodie got him up at about
4 a.m. at the Hotel Kingston where they spent the night and told him that the
weather was fine and he wanted to leave thell. 'fh.·y went to the PaliRadocR
airport alld boardf'd t,he aeroplane. He expect-ed to be flowll to Miami in the
United States of America. About t~n minutes after the fteroplane took off E
Hhodie told him he was going to stup to pick IIp something. He could do
nothing about it. HI' did not f'nquire what he was gning to pick up. Soon
after the aeroplane lalld(·c! and taxied to a stop at thr intersrction of two run­
ways. Rhodic asked him to help him load some bags (In to the aeroplane find
pointed to bags llndn a tree. He opened the door and :-;h'pped out. Rhodie
shoutf'd to the ddelHif!llt Mnrtin, who WIlS Oil nil' rlll1\vay: .. Hand mc~ those l4'
bags underneath the tn·c.'· He (appellaJlt) wns then ,'('ping Martin for the flr~t

time. He did not, SllI'llk to Martin, Martin hrwdl'd him two hngs which he
handed to Rhodie ill Otl' flproplllnc. At this stagl' UH'm wl're gunshots, he was
searpcl lllld I\() jUlIlp"(l hllek int,o HlP af'l"Opllllll·. IIc' waR slIl)sc<)lIent.ly taken
off Uw aeropln.1H· h.y the police. He said that when he f('c<·ivpd the hnp;s nnd
put thcm on the lll'roplanf' he waR not receiving them for him~el£ hut for G
Hhoclil'. I/e neVl'l' nsl{ecl Hhodil' what was ill tlll1 hags, did not, JellOW what \Vn.s
in t.I"'ln and III1Vl'r 1H'(~nIlle curious.

Deputy SIIIH'rintelHknt Mflrl-'ton gave I'vid('II(,l~ (If hf\\'ing rp(~eived certain
inforlJlntioJl on .fHllItllr,v ~!i, as II "e!'ntlt of whieh he was 11I"'SPllt at t11t' PlIlisaoof's
airport OJl .Tallllllry :W, lind witllf'ssf'd tlll1 arrivlIl of the fH'roplrllle oH which thl'
appf'lIant came til .Tnmaiell. Tht' II PIll' II ant llnd al1othl'r American (Rhodie) H
landed {rom the aproplanf' and n'portpd at thl' CWltrnns. Latl'r he saw them
rf'-bonrd the lH'wplnlh', which left the airport.. l\f r. Marston Raid thnt OIl

.Tll.l1uflry 2H he ~a\V tlh~ apppllllIlt Hnd the dd"IHlants Martin and Dl'lrny Hamil­
ton drinl,ing 111111 tlliking togl'tlH'r at the PlnyllllY Cluh at ILhout 12.110 p.m. The
learned resident IIlngist,rnte found thll.t "Marti n, '1'\1(' ker (tlH' appellant), and
Delroy Hamilton scpn together at Playboy Club on or about Janllary 28, U170, I
by Marston."

It was Rnhmitt!'ll that MIP ('vitll'ncp of Mnrst,ort was so pro<!p<! in <',rosl':-pxnmi.
nation that it was 11l\\I"orthy of aeceptnnel', pnrt,iC'ubrly wh('I"I' his pvi.krtl'p
relatf'cl to his sl'('irtg thl' llpll('lInnt at tllf' Plnyhoy Cillb in coml'llrty with Martin
and Hl1milton. Ll'arnrd COUIlRe! for the appellant pxaminl'd thif'\ IlSlH'd of
Marston's cvidf'nct~ in detail and submittf'd that the evitl£'nce WflS 11l)J'plinhle
and ought not to have bpen accqlted. \Vc agrpe. The aPlwllll.nt nddlll'ed fnirly

A t'llllclusivc evidf'tlCe that 1lf' WflS in I{ingstoll nt the relevant timf' on .ranusry 28,
l';vidence was given by air-traffic umtt"ol officers that H.hodir~·s aeroplane, in
wh;ch thp appf'lIant snid hl\ fkw to the Palisadoes Airport on that day, was at
that airport betw(wn fUl4 a.m. find (l.OI p.m. on .January 28. At the lowest,
Mr. Marston was confused ahout the dnte!', whf'lI and placE'S where he saw
the appellant hetween .Tanuary 26 and Februll.fY 2. HiI'; evidf'nce about seeing

B the appellant at t,he Pll\yhoy Cluh on .Tanuary 28, Rtood alnrw. From the terms
of the resident magistrat,e's finding he secms to have lw!iPVPd that the appellant
and ~he others were seen by Marston together, as he said, hut hp was uncertain
about the date on which they were seen. It was concf'ded on behalf of the
Crown tha.t this aspect of Marston '8 evidence was unreliabl<' and that it could
not properly grll1md 1\ finoing in II. criminal case.

C It WitS contplHled on IH'half of the appellant that Marstoll'S <'vidence about
.TrrI1\If\ry 28 waf: the foundation of the karnf'd ref:ident magistrate's finding that
he was satiRfi('d that, thp nppl~Il(U1t, Martin and the .J amaicans were acting in
furtherance of a common design to possef:~ and export ganja. DO, it was argued,
if this court finds that the resident magisttRte wrongly accept,ecl that evidence,
then hiR deciRion is open to question. It was submitted that there was no other

D evidence to support a finding of common design, and if the ref:ident magistrate
was not justified in finding !L commOil design, this court eannot say that the
appellnnt would inevitably have been convicted. I~enrned counsel for the
Cr~)wn admitted that the utility of this aRpect of Marston'f\ evidence was to
found the infprcnce that, there was a common deRign, as found by the resident
nmgistrnte, and to show that th(' apppllant hAd knowlf'dge of the contents of

E the bags he handled on February 2. But it WAS argued thltt a finding that there
was a common design between thE' nppcllaut And Martin "'as nu~ necessary to
support the conviction (If the appf'lI11nt. It was submitted that. a proper per­
:,>pective of fhi:'> part of Marston's evidl'nce sho\Vs that it. wa~ not the mainstay
or crux of the prosf'euti(ln'~ case but wns mthN only a part nf the whole body
of circumstances alleged by the- prosecut.ion as pointillg to t,he guilt, of the

F npppllant. Included in thef;e circumstance!', it was said, was the evidence of
the rental of a motor-car by th.. 3ppt·llant which it WIlS estahlished was in the
motofcfl.de which transport£'d the Lng" containing ganjn to Verno.m Field as
well aR the conduct of .the appell11nt on th.. morning' of Fehruary 2.

1'h.. appl'lInnt ndmitterl that, olle of the motor-carR, which it WIlR proved was
in t.he lllotoreade, was llin'li hy him on ,Jnlluflry :10. His evidl'nce ,,'as that

G he hif('u a motor ('ar lin .J lllllll1ry '27, which hI' rl'tllrtwd Oil .Jnllllfiry 2n, as he
hnd plnllul'll It'l\ving .Tllllllli(~a "" .Jalllllll',v Ill. lIP T!'nh'd Oll' oth£'r cllr on
.lllll11llry :In, b('CIlUSI' lthodii' jolcl him 011 thill, tillY nl, 1I1)s(~(Ihl·1 01lLt, the lI(lro­
plalw had fI nwdlanic~RI dd"d IIlld ~lIid thnt Itl' (IIPI'I'III111t) ~honl(l rent a car
and drive to T"illgstllll t,o fddt an llvintioll IlH·challic·. 111' rpIltf'd the car at
Ocho Hios awl or<)V[~ it t" Ow Bosr·"I",1 nirst,ril" TllI'rf' Hhodip told him that

H he had solved the problem with the dpfi'et and it would 110 longer be necessary
t<l go to IGngston to get the meehallic. HI' Rflid that he left, the car at the
Boscobel airstrip as Rhodie "aid hI' hnd arranged for it to be picked up. He
left the keys in the car and hl1d ltothing to do with th£' car nfter that. Learned
counsel for tlH~ Ilppelll\nt suhmitted th'lt HI<' APIH'lla11t's evidence about the
motor-car was uncontradicted. was 1\ rf'RSOl1l1h!C' C'xplllnatioll, Hlld ought not to

1 he rcjpcted. He Raid it ought to hayp creAted douht in t.llI' re"idcnt magistrate's
mind as to whether there wns any sillistPr rpasnn for th(· nplH·lIant having hired
Ute seeolld rnotor-l~nr. 'I'l1P r<'sj(!I'nt, mn~i!'lt.rnte wns, of COllrR(', 110t obliged to
necppt tiw npIH'.l1l1nt"s Iwidcllnn \>1'(\n1lSp thl'rp \\'all Ilo din'd ('vidt'llce to contra­
<Iiet it. In dpcicling whdhl'T the I'vidpllcr. was 1ll1contraoictf'd or amounted to a
reasonable explanntion it callnnt 1)(' crmsidPTf'd in isolation. A proper assess­
ment of it can only be mAde when cCl1lsidrrcd with the rrst of the evidence in
the case.

NORMAN MANLEY LAW SCHOOL LlBRARl'
f"t'lnt.I'~tt OF lEG;,L E.DUCATION
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ThA appellant's CRse at the trial was that Rhodie waR the villain and that A
It waR be who WBR in leRgllc with the other defendants to export ganja. Counsel
described him 8S the "evil genius in the scheme". The prosecution's case was
that Rhodie, who was not a witness at the trial, was working with the local
police and giving them information from time to time. Deputy Superintendent
Marston said, in evidence, that he "received information from the pilot of the
'plane on which Tucker (the appellant) landed at Palisadoes and who was the B
pilot of 'plane on which gllnja was placed. He was my informer." Later in
cross·examination he said: "I got information sometime from pilot of 'plane.
Sometimes I got information from another contact." StilI later he said: IIThis
pilot was one of my informants. All along the pilot was working with me on
my side." And: "I got specific information and this led me to believe that
ganja would be at a specific place at a specific time. I got information from C
Mr. Rhodie and two other persons." It was argued that the resident magistrate
could only find that Rhodie was a police informer if he accepted Marston's
evidence on that point; that because Marstor: was so unreliable, so discredited,
his evidence on this should not he aCC'l'pted. We see no jWJtif1cation for holding
that Marston's entire evidence was unreliable. The evidence in the case C('T­

tainly suggests that Marston had prior information about the movements of the D
Beroplane. This makes his evidence that the pilot was his informant more
credible.

It was submitted that the appellant's expI3nation of his conduct on the
morning of February 2, in leaving the aeroplane and loading the bags on to it,
is not unreasonable; that thf'TC is no evidence to the contrary and his evidence
ought, therefore, to have been accepted by the court. Once it was accepted E
that Rhodie, the pilot, was working with the police, the appellant's case, that
he was merely a casual handler of the bags, fell to the ground. There was no
one else in the aeroplane, so the only reasonable inference to be drawn was that
he was receiving the bags of ganja for his own purposes. But this apart, we
think there was ample evidence to support a finding that the appellant was not
innocently al'sisting the pilot all he said. F

The appellant admitted most of what the police witnesses said took place
after the aeroplane landed. But his evidence differed in certain significant
respects. He SR.id that the engine of the aeroplane was not switched off after
it landed and that the pilot was at the controls with the engine running while
the bags were being put on. Superintendent Marston said that the engine was
cut off and he was supported in this by Det. Sergeant Green who said: lithe G
engine of the aircraft was not running when it was being loaded". Detective
Inspector Smythe and Det. Sergeant Green said that the appellant and Martin
spoke together on the runway hefore Martin went to fetch the first bags. The
appellant denied that he spoke to Martin at any time. The police witnesses
said that Martin handed four bags to the appellant which he put into the
aeroplane. In this they were supported by the evidence of the defendant H
Martin. The appellll.nt said he received two bags only. If the version of the
evidence given by the police witnesses is accepted, the appellant's evidence of
innocently assisting Rhodie becomes incredible. It is incredible that the appel.
lant would have agreed to assist in loading, and thus handling, the bags in
circumstances which must certainly have appeared to him to have been at least
highly sm;picious while Rhodie sat in the aeroplane doing nothing, and with I
Martin and several other men on the ground who could have passed up the bags.
The fact that there was a rendezvous in the early hours of the morning at a
disused airfield, that the appellant alone alighted and spoke to Martin, that
be received four bags and placed them on the aeroplane (and it was reasonable
to infer that he would have received the balance if they had not been inter.
Tupted), that a motor-car hired by him was used to transport some of the
ba~!;-aII this evidence, if believed, when taken together, is, in our view, suffi.

A cient proof of the fact that the appellant waf; acting on his own behalf in
receiving the bngR. On the' qllCRtioll whether or not Uw "Plwllllllt '8 evidence
should be believed, the resident magistrate waR entitled to take irtto account
the fact that though the appellant said he was acting innocently on the ccca-'
sion, he said nothing when he was taken from the aeroplltne by the police or
when the police told him that the bags contained ganja or yet when one of

B the .Jamaican defendants Raid in hiR pr~sence: "A white man business. It

We hold that there was abundant evidence, which Wllll obviouRly accepted
by the learned reRident magistrate, on which it could be found that the appel­
lant was not assh1ting the pilot as he said, but had received the bag~, found
to contain ganja, for his own purposes. It would follow from this finding that
the appellant had dominion and control over them and had not merely handl~d

C them casually, as was contended. It would also be reasonable to infer from
li.ll the circumstances that the appellant knew that the ba.gs contained ga.nja
and had landed in order to collect them for transportation abroad.

On the appeal against conviction, thnre remains to be considered the llubmis­
Hion~ (""werning the informl\tion on whieh the vprdict Il.gnil1Rt thp npprlll1.nt waH
recorded. As has bl)(,11 8tated, the appr.llant was convicted on the information

D which charged him alone. The learned resident magistrate recorded the finding
that "Martin and Tucker (appellant) also in pORscssion of galljo. placed on
aeroplane It. It was submitted that if the resident magiRtrate hltd properly
aRsesRed the evidence and applied a judicial mind to it, having found as indi­
cated ahovl', he ought not ill law to have convicted the appellant on the
information which charged him alone. It was Raid that this court ill in Q

E position to say that became of the confusion in the informations the resident
magistrate did not apply a judicial mind to the legal concept of possession,
that he failed to distinguish between possession and casual handling, and the
verdict ought not to be allowed to stand. It was contended that the conviction
cannot be rescued by this court substituting a conviction on the joint charge
(with Martin) for the "bad conviction" on the single charge. As we have

F said, once it was accepted that the appellant was acting on his own behalf, there
could be no doubt that he was legally in possession of the bags he received and
their contents. The question whether the resident magistrate had properly
appreciated and applied the law regarding possession-i.e. dominion and control
1\8 against casual handling-would not, therefore, ariRe.

It is clear that the re8ident magistrate concluded that l\fartin was in joint
G possession with the .Tamaican drfendants of all the bagR taken to Vernam

I'irld and also in joint possession with thp apprdlant of thc bags handed to him.
\Vhell Ill' came to (kcidc hnw to r(',~ord his verdicts he 110 doubt had in mind,
and WdS influenced by, the doubt exprCRsed by counsel for the prosecution
whether a "no verdict", as it waR called, could be f'ntered in respect of
~hrtin on the information charging him jointly with the appellant. It does not

H appear to us that there could have be~n any objection to this course. But
having decided that Martin Rhould be convicted with the .Jamaicans, with the
doubt in mind, he recorded the verd ict in respect of the appellant on the
alternative charge. No valid reason has been advanced, and we can think
of none, why the conviction should be held to be bad because of the course
adopted. As we have said, there is no legal objection to a person who commits

I an offence jointly with another being charged and tried separately. The appel­
lant was charged twice for the same act of posseRsion. In view of the state­
ment made by counsel for the prORccution at the trial ~,giving the reason for
the appellant being charged ItR he was, and the caRe beil'lg conducted on this
basis, it cannot, in our view, be Raid that the conviction rtlcorded against the
appellant amounts to a finding that the appellant was in exclusive possession
and not in joint possession with Martin aR was expressly found.

For the reasons we have ginn the second ground of appeallllso fails.
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The sentence imposed upon the appellant is the maximum penalty prescribed A
for the offence on 1\ first conviction. It was said that this was the appellant's
flrat conviction under the Dangerous Drugs Law. It WIl.R submitted that the
only apparent justification for the maximum term of imprisonment being im.
posed was (a) the fact that the appellant is a foreigner and (b) that a large
quantity of ganja waS involved. There is no ground for saying that the maxi­
mum penalty was imposed on the appellant merely because he is a foreigner. B
Two of the .Tamaicans tried with him were given a Rimilar sentence. AR regards
the quantity of gatljn, it was said that the amount which Came into the
appellant's possession was a small fraction of the whole. Assuming, without
deciding, that the resident magistrate could not properly take into account the
fact that the appellant clearly intended to take all the bags and their contents,
the "small fraction II consisted of the contents of the two bags in evidence which C
it was held that the appellant received. 'l'he vegetable matter in these two
bags was said by Dr. Ellington to weigh 83 lb. As was Raid recently by this
court in n. v. Armstrong and Smith (13), it is notorious that the offence for
which the appellant was convicted is very prevalent in this country despite
the minimum penalty of 18 months' imprisonment on a first conviction pre­
scribed. It is also notorious that there is considerable traffic in ganja between D
this country and abroad, particularly the United States of America. In our
view, a court is justified in imposing a severe sentence in order to discourage
this traffic. It is well to emphasise that the term of imprisonment to which
the appellant was sentenced is the maximum penalty prescribed for a first
conviction.. So it was contemplated that there could be cases in which the
maximum penalty for a first conviction could properly be imposed. We cannot E
say that this is not such a case.

The appeal is dismissed and the conviction and sentence affirmed.

Appeal dismissed.
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